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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Memberts of
A27Z Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limited

Gurgaon

Repotrt on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of A2Z Waste
Management (Ludhiana) Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow

Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2023,
and its financial performance (including other comprehensive income) and its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Respounsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements under the ptrovisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled out other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requitements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit mattets ate those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the cutrent period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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We do not have any matters to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have
fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditot’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements section of our report. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The results of out audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters, if any, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
safeguarding the assets of the Company; preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that wete
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whethet due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease opetations, ot has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives ate to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etrot, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud ot etror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
matetial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from etror, as fraud may

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ot the m':ﬁg'jﬁt‘r_pf wternal control.
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* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the citcumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whethet the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the approptiateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are requited to draw attention in our auditor’s repott to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structute and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the undetlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and petformance of the audit of the financial statements of
such entities included in the consolidated financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (1)
planning the scope of our audit wotk and in evaluating the results of our work; and (if) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govetnance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We desctibe these matters in our auditot’s repott unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our repott because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. With respect to matters specified in paragraph 3 (xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 (“the Otder” or “CARO”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Act, according to the information and explanations given to us and
based on the CARO reports issued by the respective auditors of companies included in the
consolidated financial statements, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report as under:

Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report) Order

(CAROY) reports of the companies included in the standalone financial statements are:

S. Name of Company Holding/ [ Clause number of the

No. subsidiary/ CARO teport which is
associate/ qualified or is adverse

1 A27 Waste Management (L.udhiana) Limited Holding vii(a)

2 Magic Genie Smartech Solutions Limited Subsidiary vii(a)

3. Rishikesh Waste Management Limited Subsidiary vii(a)

(formerly known as A2Z Powertech Limited)

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion, propet books of account as tequited by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the
statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder;

e. On the basis of the written tepresentations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such conttols, refer to our separate report in “Annexure I”’; and

g. with respect to the other mattets to be included in the Auditot’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements;

.  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

1, There were no amounts which wete trequired to be transferred to the li
Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv. () The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium ot any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities(“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or inditectly lend or invest in othet persons or entities identified in any mannet whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaties”) or provide any guarantee, secutity or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that ,to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no fund shave been received by the Company from any
petsons ot entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lendet
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaties”) or provide any guarantee, security ot the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations undet sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

For M P Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Rugr@:. 027523N
UT{W/—H

Date : 11.05.2023
Place: Gurugram
UDIN: 23509623BGXMRH2639
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Annexure - 11 to the Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
to the members of the company of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over consolidated financial reporting of A2Z Waste Management
(Ludhiana) Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaty companies for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Conttols

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial conttols based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls ovet
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and etrors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial repotting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note requite that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial teporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial conttols
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a matetial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditot’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of matetial misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or etror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial teporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and faitly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements

Inhetent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to futute petiods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may detertorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial repotting and such internal financial conttols over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31
March 2023, based on the intetnal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M P Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Regn. Em- 027523N

& Alisadd
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A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Consolid=ted Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(Unless» stherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

ASSETS:
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
[nvestments accounted for using the equity method
l'inancial asscts:
Other financial asscts
Non-current tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets

Current Assets:
Iinancial assets:
T'rade recetvables
Cash and cash cquivalents
l.oans
Other financial assets
QOther current assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES:
Equity:
liquity share capital
Other equity
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Liabilities:
Non-current liabilities:
[financial liabilities:
Borrowings
lLong term provisions
Other non- current liabilities

Current liabilities:
I'inancial labilities:
Borrowings
T'rade payables
(@) Duc to micro enterprises and small enterprises
() Duces to others
Other financial liabilities
Other current labilities
Short teim provisions

Interbranch

Significant Accounting Policies

The accompaning notes are part of financial statements.

T'his is the consolidated balance sheet referred to in our report of cven date.

For M P Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Regm Nig-27523N

Mata Prasad
Proprictor
M No. 509623

4, No. 509623\
RN 027523N

i

Place : Gurgaon
[tate : 18.05.2023

UDINA 92309633BGAM RHI639

Note
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14

13
14
15

16
17

18
15
14

At thra

Chief Fxecutive Officer

As at As at

Mazrch 11, 2023 March A, 2022
107.36 152.84
4,074.52 4,074.52
850.83 834.35
43.57 8.57
162.05 165.66
267.52 267.52
5,505.85 5.503.46
974.66 931.18
7.85 74.83
41.23 6.24
185.75 193.12
248.51 208.43
1,458.00 1.413.80
6,963.85 6,917.26
5.00 5.00
467.35 647.17
472.35 652.17
47135 652,17
795.49 709.02
6.21 13.12
2,311.46 2,311.46
3,113.16 3,033.60
502.30 44798
0.68 1.44
1,565.04 1,454.20
1,183.25 1,190.55
124.26 132.99
2.81 4.32
3,378.34 3,231.48
6,963.85 6.917.25

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Director
(DIN . 07369758)
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Company Secretary
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]

Surender Singh
Director
(DIN. 07713768)

¢ ij‘ e

uiicial Officer



A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless dtherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

For the year ended For the year ended
Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue:
Revenue from opetrations 19 549.96 491.32
Other income 20 2.17 5.11
Total revenue 552.13 496.43
Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 21 183.00 127.13
Employee benefits expense 22 264.64 282.20
[Finance costs 23 11229 153.48
Depteciation and amortisation expenscs 24 45.48 4870
Other expenscs 25 151.93 146.64
Total expenses 757.34 758.15
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items, share of profit and tax (205.21) (261.72)
Exceptional items-gain
Profit / (Loss) before share of profit and tax (205.21) (261.72)
Shate of profit of associate/joint venture 16.48 295.33
Profit / (Loss) before tax (188.73) 33.61
Tax expense 26
Current tax
Defetred tax charge
Profit / (Loss) for the year (188.73) 33.61
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent year
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 11.39 5.25
11.39 5.25
Total comprehensive income for the year (177.34) 38.86

Profit /(Loss) is attributable to:
Equity holdets of the Company (188.73) 33.61

Non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income is attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 11.39 525
Non-controlling interests

‘Total comprehensive income is attributable to:
Equity holdets of the Company (177.34) 38.86

Non-controlling interests

Profit / (Loss) per equity share : 27
(Nominal value of shates INR 10)
Basic EPS (377 46) 6722
Diluted EPS (377 46) 67.22
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompaning notes are part of financial statements.
"This is the consolidated statement of profit and loss refetred to in our teport of even date.

For M P Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Regn NC.V 2 7523N

) I:":_-
Mata Prasad | ) Dilbag Surender Singh
Proptietor Director Director
M No. 509623 |3 Loy (DIN . 07369758) (DIN 07713768)
el

F-lwﬂk i i
Place : Gurgaon Ax f Bhagrydhakilor TTNELE
Date : 18.05.2023 (ol Excenuve Cfice Company Secretary L nanenl Officer

UDIN® 9350962380 *NRHI63F



A27Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

A Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit / (Loss) before rax

Adjustments :
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Interest expense
Interest income
ESOP expense
Business acquisation adjustments
Iixceptional loss (gain)
Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital:
Change in trade receivables
Changes in short term loans
Changes in other financial assets
Changes in other assets
Changes in trade payable
Changes in other financial liabilities
Changes in other liabilities
Changes in provisions
Net changes in working capital:

Net cash generated from operations
Current taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash generated from operating activities

B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work in progress)- net
Interest received
Net cash generated from investing activities

C Cash flow from financing activities
(Repayment of)/ Proceeds from long term borrowings (net)
(Repayment of)/ Proceeds from short term borrowings (net)
Interest paid
Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ( A+B+C)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the ycar
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accompaning notes are part of financial statements.
"I'his is the consolidated cash flow statement as referred to in our report of even date.

For M P Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
TN

044
Mata Prasad
Proprictor
M No. 509623

Regn <

Place : Gurgaon
Date : 18.05 2023

UIING 93509693 BUX M RH 637

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(205.21) (261.72)
45.48 48.70
112.29 153.48
(2.07) (3.49)
(2.48) 0.30
(51.99) (62.73)
(43.48) (10.16)
(34.99) 134.25
7.37 (8.81)
(40.08) 39.53
110.07 50.13
32.08 (226.09)
(8.73) 47.21
2.97 72
25.21 33.26
(26.78) (29.47)
3.61 65.60
(23.17) 36.13
LT
(A2 B 14
(3295) 3404
86.47 77.80
54.32 26.51
(151.67) (127.37)
(10.88) (23.06)
(66.98) 51.21
74.83 2362
7.85 74.83

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Irillvag
Director
(DIN . 07369758)

Surender Singh
Director
(DIN. 07713768)
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A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 1: Nature of operations

A27 Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limited (*A2Z’ or ‘the group’ or ‘SPV’) was the wholly owned subsidiary of Greeneffect Waste Management Limited tll 14.07.2019
and is now a subsidiary of Infraservices Ltd. with effect from 15.07.2019 and associate company of Greenceffect Waste Management Limited. It was incorporated at
National Capital Territory of Delhi and Haryana on July 14, 2011 for providing Waste Management Services.

The group’s main business primarily would include Door to door collection, intermediate transportation etc.

Note 2 : Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Accounting:

The consolidated financial statements of the group have been prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard)
Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relavent provisions of the Act.

Tn 2016 the group has not applied any new accounting policies or made other retrospective changes that have a material cffect on the statement of financial position as at
1 April 2015. Accordingly, the group is not required to present a third statement of financial position as at that date. However, the group has elected to provide this
additional comparative information together with related notes as permitted by Ind AS 1 “Presentation of consolidated financial statements’.

2.2 Foreign Currency Transactions:

"The group's consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the functional currency of the group.

Iioreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the group, using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange
rate).

Forcign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the remeasurement of monetary items denominated in forcign currency at
year-end exchange rates are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Non-monctary items are not retranslated at year-end and are measurcd at historical cost (translated using the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-
monetary items measured at fair value which atc translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

lixchange differences atising on the scttlement of monetary items or on translating monctary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial
recognition during the period or in previous consolidated financial statements shall be recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or loss shall be recognised in other
comprchensive income. Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-monctary item is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, any exchange component of that gain or
loss shall be recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

‘The consolidated financial statements of an integral foreign operation arc translated as if the transactions of the foreign operation have brvspalinne of the group itsclf.




A27 WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

2.3 Segment Reporting

2.3.1 Business segments

Operating Segments are identified based on financial information that is regularly revicwed by the chicf operating decision maker (CODM) in deciding how to allocate
resources and in assessing performance The primary reporting of the group has been performed on the basis of business segment Segments have been identified and
reported based on the nature of the products, the risks and returns, the organization structure and the internal financial reporting systems. The group is operating into
following segments — (i) Municipal Solid Waste Management(MSW) and (i) Others represents trading of goods.

2.4 Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized on transfer of control of promised goods or services to a customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the group is expected to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation. This variable consideration is estimated based on the expected value of outflow. Revenue (net of variable consideration) is recognized only to the extent that it
is highly probable that the amount will not be subject to significant reversal when uncertainty relating to its recognition is resolved

2.4.1 Interest Income:
Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable

2.4.2 Other Income:
Other income is recognised when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realisation exists.

2.5 Botrowing Costs

Borrowings arc initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowing are subscquently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or prodiction of a qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the assct for it's intended use or sale. Qualifying asscts arc asscts that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended usc or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

2.6 Other Intangible Assets
Intangible asscts acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible asscts acquired in a business combination is their fair valuc at the
date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

All finite-lived intangible asscts, including capitalised internally developed softwate, are accounted for using the cost model wheteby capitalised costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Residual values and uscful lives are reviewed at cach reporting date. In addition, they are subject to impairment testing
as described in Note 2.9. The (ollowing uscful lives are applied:

* Softwarc: 3-5 ycars

Amortisation has been included within depreciation, amortisation and impairment of nonfinancial asscts.

Subsequent expenditures on the maintenance of computer software is expensed as incurred.

When an intangible assct is disposed of, the gain or loss on disposal is determined as the difference beeween the proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and 1s
recognised in profit or loss within other income or other expenscs.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and cquipment (comprising fittings and furniture) are initially recognised at acquisition cost or manufacturing cost, including any costs directly attributable
to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the group’s management

Property, plant and cquipment are subscquently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis to write down the cost less estimated residual value of Property, plant and equipment. The following useful lives arc
applied:

* Buildings : 3-60 ycars

¢ Plant and [iquipment : 8-15 ycars

* Furniture and Ifixtures : 8-10 years

* Vehicles : 6-10 years

* QOffice Kquipment : 5 years

* Computers : 3-6 ycars

Material residual value estimates and cstimates of uscful life are updated as required, but at least annually.

Gains or losses arising on the disposal of Property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asscts and arc recognised in profit or loss within other income or other expenses.

2.8 Leased Assets

2.8.1 Finance leases

Management applics judgment in considering the substance of a lease agreement and whether it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
the leased assct Key factors considered include the length of the lease term in relation to the cconomic life of the assct, the present value of the minimum lease payments
in relation to the asset’s fair value, and whether the group obtains ownership of the asset at the end of the lease term

FFor leases of land and buildings, the minimum lcase payments are first allocated to cach component based on the relative fair values of ligfmipuctive lease interests. Each
component is then evaluated separately for possible treatment as a finance lease, taking into consideration the fact that lam has gy ifideliniie economic life.

i povermally
pye

r'-
iulil or loss, as finance costs over the pertod of the lease. /\d— / !

Sec Note 2.7 for the depreciation il lives for assets held under finance leases.

The interest element of lease put
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A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

2.8.2 Operating leases
All other leases are treated as operating leases. Where the group is a lessce, payments on operating lease agreements are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the leasc term. Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, arc expensed as incurred.

2.9 Impairment testing of goodwill, other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

For impairment assessment purposes, asscts arc grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). As a result, some
assets arc tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is allocated to those cash-generating units that arc expected to
benefit from synergies of a related business combination and represent the lowest level within the group at which management monitors goodwill

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated (determined by the group’s management as cquivalent to its operating segments) are tested for impairment at
least annually. All other individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s (or cash-generating unit’s) carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. To determine the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from cach cash-gencrating unit and
detcrmines a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the
group’s latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of future reorganisations and asset enhancements Discount factors are determined individually
for cach cash-gencrating unit and reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and asset-specific risk factors.

Impairment losses for cash-gencrating units reduce first the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to that cash-generating unit Any remaining impairment loss is
charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment
loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.

2.10 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives risc to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or cquity instrument of another entity.

2.10.1 Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments:

All financial asscts arc recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transacton costs that arc
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assct. The group currently have security deposits, investment in preference shares of subsidiary companics, trade receivables,
loans etcFinancial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the financial assct and subscquently all the
risks and rewards are tranferred. A financial liability is derccognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

2.10.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement of financial assets:

I'inancial asscts arc classificd as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (I'VOCI) or fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL).

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the {ollowing conditions and is not designated as at FVIPL :

a) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold asscts to collect contractual cash flows; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions arc met and 1t 1s not designated as at FV'I'P) .

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial asscts and

b) the contractual terms of the financial assct give risc on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets arce classificd as measured at FVI'PI. ‘The Bank may designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at I'V'I'PL. if doing so climinates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. The Bank has not applicd fair
value designation option for any financial assets.

2.10.3 Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the group applics expected credit loss {{4CLL| model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets
and credit risk exposure:

a. linancial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost ¢.g. security deposits

b [inancial assets that are available for sale

¢ T'rade reccivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial assei

‘I'he group follows ‘simplificd approach’ for recognition of impatrment loss allowance on Point ¢ provided above

The application of simplified approach require the group to recognise the impairment loss allowance based on lifetime 15Cls at cach reporting date, right {rom its nitial
recognition. Ior recognition of impairment loss on other financial asscts and risk exposure, the group determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since nitial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. Ilowever, sf credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime [ECL 1s used If, in a subscequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there 1s no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, then the Lifetime CL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument

The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime 12Cl. which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive
li.e., all cash shortfalls], discounted at the original EIR. ECL impairment loss allowance [or reversal] recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss under the head ‘other expenses’. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below :

[financial asscts measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance reducing the net cartying amount.

Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount




A27Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

2.10.4 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities:

The measurement of financial liabilitics depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilitics held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss Financial liabilitics designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss
arc designated as such at the inital date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are sausfied for liabilities designated as FVIPL, fair value gains/ losscs
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCIL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the
group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability arc recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The group
has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisattion process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation s
included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.10.5 Reclassification of financial instruments:

‘T'he group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which
are equity instruments and financial liabilities. IFor financial asscts which are debt instruments, a reclassification 1s made only if there 1s a change in the business model for
managing thosc asscts. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The group’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result
of external or internal changes which are significant to the group’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when
the group cither begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations If the group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The group does not
restate any previously recognised gains, losses [including impairment gains or losses| or interest. "The group did not reclassify any financial assets in the current petiod.

2.10.6 Offsetting of financial instruments:
Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilitics simultancously.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing cach product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

2. Raw Matertals, Packing Material and Stores & Spare Parts: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred i bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is determined on first-in-first-out basis.

b. Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials, labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal opcrating
capacity, but excluding botrowing costs. Cost is determined on first-in-first-out basis.

¢ Stock-in-Trade: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first-
in-first-out basss.

Net realisable value 1s the estimated sclling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.12 Income Taxes
‘T'ax expense recognised in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred income taxes are
calculated using the liability method.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss or deductible temporary difference will be utilised against future taxable
income ‘T'his is asscssed based on the group’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use
of any unuscd tax loss or credit.

2.13 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash cquivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-term, highly liquid investments maturing within 90 days from the dace
of acquisition that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

2.14 Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Share capital represents the nominal (par) value of shares that have been issued
Share premium includes any premiums received on issuc of share capital. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from share premium, net
of any related income tax benefits.
Other components of equity include the following:

® Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability - Comprises the actuarial losses from changes in demographic and financial assumptions and the return on plan asscts
(sec Note 2.15)

# Retained carnings includes all current and prior period retained profits and share-based employee remuncration All transactions with wugmgs of the parent are
l.:rlhl i approved in a

tecorded separately within equity. Dividend distributions payable to cquity sharcholders ate included in other Labilities when the dividends |
general meeting prior to the reporting date.

(M. No\sogs2
FRN 027523
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A27Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

2.15 Post-employment benefits and short-term employee benefits

Post-employment benefit plans

The group provides post-employment benefits through various defined contribution and defined benefit plans.

Defined Contribution Plans :

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund and employee state insurance are defined contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

Defined Benefit Plans :

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of cach financial
year. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departurc at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for cach completed year of service.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losscs, the cffect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and
the return on plan assets, are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to Retained Farnings through OCI in the period 1n which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Leave Liability:

The employees of the group are entitled to leave as per the leave policy of the group. The group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve
months, as long term employce bencfit for measurement purposes. Such long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method at the year end. Actuarial gains/losses should be recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits, including holiday entitlement, are current liabilities included in pension and other employee obligations, measured at the undiscounted
amount that the group expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.

2.16 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions for product warrantics, legal disputes, oncrous contracts or other claims are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of cconomic resources will be required from the group and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the
outflow may still be uncertain.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including
the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Any rcimbursement that the group is virtually certain (o collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is recognised as a scparate asset. [However, this asset may
not excced the amount of the related provision .

No liability is recognised if an outflow of cconomic resources as a result of present obligations is not probable. Such situations are disclosed as contingent labilitics unless
the outflow of resourccs is remote

If the cffect of the time value of moncey 1s material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate which reflects the current market assessment of time value of
money. Government bond rate can be used as discount rate, as it is a riskfree pre-tax rate reflecting the time value of money lor this purpose, the discount rate should
also be reassessed at the end of cach reporting period, including the interim reporting date, if any.

2.17 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

Recognition of service revenues :

Determining when to recognise revenues from after-sales services requires an understanding of both the nature and dming of the services provided and the customers’
pattern of consumption of those services, based on historical experience and knowledge of the market. (sec Note 2 4)

Recognition of deferred tax assets :

The extent to which, deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability that future taxable income will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry-forwards can be utilised. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic
limits or uncertainties in various tax judsdictions (sce Note 2.12)

2.18 Estimation Uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant cffect on recognition and measurement of asscts, labilities, income and expenses is provided
below. Actual results may be substantially different

Impairment of non-financial assets and goodwill

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of cach asset or cash generating units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest
rate to discount them istimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate (sec Note 2.9).

Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at cach reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertaintics in these estimates
relate to technological obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software and I equipment.

Inventories

Management estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most eliable evidence available at cach reporting date The future tealisation of these
inventorics may be affected by future technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future selling prices.

Construction contract revenue

Recognised amounts of construction contract revenues and related receivables reflect management’s best estimate of cach contract’s outcome and stage of completion.
[For more complex contracts in particular, costs to complete and contract profitability are subject to significant estimation uncertainty (see Note 2.4).

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate gl anticipation of
]

future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit L|u-j-. i

Fair value measurement Y- (V"‘h p

Management uses valuation techniques to determi fane v i Hnanial instruments (where active market quotes aee ot wigilablo) aindd ial assets. This
involves developing estimates and assumptions « ey “"}"C'L::“'_ﬁ: ke participants would price the instrument. Manageingf laves s a= _ lnie on observable
data as far as possible but this is not always qvail L dilf-ment uses the best information available Estimated |[#1y faliii iy 4 dey Fenh the actual prices

that would be achieved in an arm’s length tiamsas



A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

2.19 Leases

The group has adopted Ind AS 116-Leases effective 1st April, 2019, using the modified retrospective method. The group has applied the standard to its leases with the
cumulative impact recognised on the date of initial application (1st April, 2019). Accordingly, previous period information has not been restated. The group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract.

The group as lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the group assesses whether:

6} the contract involves the use of an identified assct

(11) the group has substantially all of the cconomic bencfits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and

(i) the group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the leasc, the group recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (shott term leases) and leases of low value assets. For these short term and leases of low value assets, the
group recogniscs the lease payments as an operating expense over the term of the leasc.

The right-of-usc assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease. They are subsequently measused at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any Right-of-use assets are depreciated
from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and uscful life of the underlying asset.

The lease lability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. The lcase liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the
lease term or a change in an index or rate used to determine leasc payments. The remeasurement normally also adjusts the leased assets.

The group as lessor
i) Operating lease

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight line basts over the lease term.

ii) Finance lease
When asscts are lcased out under a finance lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments is recognised as a receivable. The difference between the gross

receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income T.ease income is recognised over the term of the leasce using the net ivestment
method before tax, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.




TSPLOY ¥8'¢StT wo 60°C 16°TL 891 ¥8'SL 1070 TT0T ‘I€ YI3PIAl IE St due[eq
TEPLOY 9¢°L0T 970 60°¢ 18°6¢ 129 9879 10°0 €20T ‘TE YOTEIN ¥e Se 2oue[eg
sunowe Surdyed 19N
- SYLLY 6 05801 15768¢ 86°C 1¢°8¢T £€6'8C €20T ‘I€ YOTPIN JE St 20Ue[Eg
’ = . - . juaunsnlpe /sresodsiq
- - uoneUIqUIOd ssaursng ydnoay parmboy
- 8y°'sy S1°0 : oree 174\ 00°¢t - vonenardacy
2 L6129 06 047801 Wwise vL'c 1¢°sTr £6'8¢ TZ0T ‘I€ Y2TEl IE Se ouefeq
. yuswsnipe /stesodsi(y
- uonEUIqUIOD ssAUTSn| yInoay) parmboy
- L8y LT0 90°¢ 1cce LTO 66°Cl . uonenarda(y
- LT'¢8S 068 P a0t 0T°sce e (44411 £6'8C 120T ‘7 1edy 3e se aouepeg
susunredun pue wonernardaq
TSYLOY 1848L 8t'6 6S'TII e 6Ty «<y 9IT'10T €6'8C €20T TE YPTeN 3e St oue[eqg
= - jusunsnlpe /sfesodsiq
- uoREUIqUIOD ssaursnq ydnoryy parmboy
SUORIPPY
TSVLOY I8¥8L 8V°6 6S°TIL e 6Ty (47 4 9IT'T0C €6'8C TZ0T ‘IE UPIEINl Je Se 0ur[eq
- jusunsnlpe/sresodsiq
. . UOREUTqUIOD $SAUTSTIq YBnomy parmboy
B SuOnIppy
TSPLOY 18°¥8L 8v°6 65111 ey (4704 ITTOC £€6'8C 120C ‘1 [wdy 1€ se soue[eq
nunotue Surfrred s$0ir)
ssauoad 0 wawdmba mamdmba s SoImIXYy uamdmba d
ur spxom yerden oL PO pue s[oog, SIPHRA pue armyruIn,j pue yue[J St SyeonIEd

:SMO[[O] S€ 9I¥ SIUNOWE FUIALES JIPY} PUE JUALAINDS PUE IWEG A0 §,an0in o Jo sprerng

1wowdmbs pue 1xeld ‘Aradoig :¢ a0N

(soeT YN UI 23€ S)UNOWE [[E ‘PIje}s ISIMIIYIO SSIAU())

€707 ‘IS YoTeJ\l PAPUS Jeak o7 JOJ SIUIWId)EB)S [BIOURTY PIAEPHosuod 2 Jo ped Surmzoy sajoN

QALIATT (VNVIHANT) INFWIOVNVIA H1SVA ZZTV




A27Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended Masch 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

Note 4: Capital work in progress

Assets under construction comptises of expenditure for the Building and plant in the course of construction. The amount of expenditure
recognised in carrying amount of capital work in progress are as under.

As at As at
Masch 31, 2023  Masch 31, 2022
Buildings under construction 1,111.98 1111.98
Power plant equipment's under erection 1,923.24 1923.24
Borrowing costs capitalised 184.87 184.87
Other expenses (directly attributable to construction/etection of assets)
Employee benefit expense 107.81 107.81
Depreciation 156.56 156.56
Other directly attributable expenses (including trial/ test run expenses) 805.53 805.53
Less:- Revenue recognised duting trial run period (215.47) (215.47)
Total 4,074.52 4,074.52
Amount i CWIP for a peniod of
Particulars Less than1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years TIorSTHEARS Total
years
Projects in progress =
Projects temporarily suspended 4.50 4,070.02 4,074.53
Total 4.50 4,070.02 4,074.53




A27Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED

Notes forming patt of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)
Note 5 : Investments
Carrying amount at amortised cost:

Investments in liquity Shares

Total

Investment in Equity shares- Associates

25,500 (Previous Year - 25,500 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up in Ecogreen Envirotech Solutions

Limited

Add: Share of profit of associate

Aggregate amount of unquoted mnvestments
Aggregate amount of impairment in valuc of investment

Note 6 : Loans

[Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated]
Loan to related partics

lL.oan to others

Interest accrued

Total

Loans gruntid to Promoters, Directors/ KMPs/Related puriics

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
850.83 834.35
850.83 834.35
2.55 2.55
848.28 831.80
850.83 834.35
850.83 834.35
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current Non - Current Current Non - Current
3533 0.25
5.65 5.65
025 0.34
41,23 - 6.24

Current Period Previous Period
T fB
SR A AN Amount outstanding | % of Total® Amourft % of Total®
outstanding
Promoters
Directors
KMPs :
Related Partics 3558 100% 0.59 100%
Total 35.58 100% 0.59 100%
Note 7 : Other financial assets As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current Non - Current Current Non - Current
|Unsccuted, considered good unless otherwise stated]
Other assets 183.30 190.37
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 1.47 1.47
Bank dcposits with more than 12 months maturity * 35.35 . 0.35
Security deposits(unsccured) 0.98 8.22 0.98 8.22
Advances recoverable from group companies doubtful 0.30
Total 185.75 43.57 193.12 8.57
* 1Teld as margin moncy against bank guarantee and letter of credit and as debt service reserve account against term loan from banks.
Note 8 : Non-current tax assets (net) As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Advance tax (nct of provision) 162.05 165.66
Total 162.05 165.66
Note 9 : Other current assets As at As at
March 31, 2023 March i1, 2022
Current Non - Current Current Non - Current
[Unsccuted, considered good unless otherwise stated]
Other advances 19.55
Capital advances 5963 267.52 267.52
Prepaid expenses
Balances with government authoritics 188.88 188.88
Total 248.51 267.52 208.43 267.52
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A27 WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming patt of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
«(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 10 : Trade receivables As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade receivables - (Unsecured):
I'rom other than related parties
Considered good 969.52 925.53
Considered doubtful 0.19 0.19
From related parties 5.14 5.65
974.85 931.37
Less: Allowances for doubtful debts (0.19) (0.19)
Total 974.66 931.18
Ageing of trade receivables at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for fullowing periods from due date of paymeul
Particulars Less than 6 6 months- 1-2 2-3 e (v D57 Total
months lyear years years
(i)Undisputed Trade receivables — considered 104.37 869.88 0.40 974.66
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impai 0.19 0.19
(i) Disputed Trade Receivables — considered gc (0.19) (0.19)
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk =
(v) Disputed Trade Recetvables — credit impairey : S
Total 104.37 - 869.88 0.40 974.66
Ageing of trade receivables at March 31, 2022
Cruistanding for follgwing perisds from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 6 months- 1-2 2-3 e B 9 e Total
months 1year years years
(1YUndisputed T'rade receivables — considered 60.90 870.10 0.18 931,18
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impay 0.19 0.19
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables — considered gc 0.19) (0.19)
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increasc in credit risk
(v) Disputed T'rade Receivables — credit impairey =
Total 60.90 870.10 - 0.18 931.18

Note 10.1 : All trade receivables are short-term. The cffect of any difference between the cffective interest rate applied and the estimated current market rate is not
significant. Allowance for credit losses has been recorded accordingly within other expenses, and is based on the expected credit loss methodology. The doubtful trade

recetvables are mostly due from customers in the business-to-business market that are experiencing financial difficulties.

Note 11 : Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
Cash in hand
Total

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
6.76 49.45
1.09 25.38
7.85 74.83




A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
«(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

‘Note 13 : Non-Current Borrowings

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Carried at amortised cost - Secured Non-Current Non-Current
Debt component of compound financial instruments 795.49 709.02
Total 795.49 709.02
As at As at
Note 14 : Provisions
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current Non - Current Current Non - Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 14 1) 2.81 6.21 2.01 13.12
Provision for compensated leave absences . 2.31
Total 2.81 6.21 4.32 13.12

i) Defined benefit plan and long term employment benefit
A General description:

Gratuity [Defined benefit plan]:
Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial
year. Every employec who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service
The scheme is funded with an insurance company (Birla Sun Life) in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

Leave wages [Long term employment benefit]:
The employcees of the Group are entitled to leave as per the leave policy of the Group. The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be catried forward beyond twelve
months, as long term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such Jong term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method at the year end. Actuarial gains/losses should be recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

A reconciliation of the Group’s defined benefit obligation (DBO) and plan assets, i.e. the gratuity plan, to the amounts presented in the statement of
financial position for each of the reporting periods is presented below:

Assets and liability (Balance sheet position)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Present value of obligation 9.02 1513
Ifair value of plan asscts
Net asset / (liability) 9.02 15.13

Expenses recognised during the year

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Tn statement of profit and loss 5.28 6.51
In other comptchensive income (11.39) (5.25)
Total expenses recognized during the year (6.11) 1.26

Defined benefit obligation
The details of the Group's DBO are as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Present value of obligation as at the beginning 15.13 13.87
Current service cost 4.23 5.56
Interest expense ot cost 1.05 095
Re-measurement or actuarial (gain) / loss arising from:
~ change in demographic assumptions
- change in financial assumptions 0.48) 0.21)
- experience adjustments (10.91) (5.04)
Present value of obligation as at the end 9.02 15.13
Bifurcation of net liability As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current liability (Short term) 0.07 0.20
Non-current liability (long term) 8.95 14.93
Net liability 'J}, 9.02 15.13
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A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Expenses recognised in the profit and loss statement

Current service cost
Net interest cost/(income) on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset)
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gains)/losses
- change in demographic assumptions
- change in financial assumptions
- experience variance (i.e.Actual experience vs assumptions)

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income

Financial assumptions

The principal financial assumptions used in the valuation are shown in the table below:

Discount rate (per annum)
Salary growth rate (per annum)
Demographic assumptions

Mortality Rate (% of IALM 06-08)
Withdrawal rates, based on service years: (per annum)

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
423 5.56
1.05 095
5.28 6.51

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(0.48) 0.21)
(10.91) (4.94)
(11.39) (5.15)
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
7.30% 6.95%
5.00% 5.00%
As at As at
March 31, 2023 Mazrch 31, 2022
100.00% 100.00%
2.00% 2.00%

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuaries. Discount factors are determined close to cach year-end by reference to

market yields of high quality corporate bonds that arc denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to

the terms of the related pension obligation. Other assumptions ate based on current actuarial benchmarks and management’s historical experience.

Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis
below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions

constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Defined benefit obligation (Basc)

Discount Rate (- / + 1%)

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%)

(% change compared to base duc to sensitivity
Attrition Rate (- / + 50%)

(% change compared to base duc to sensitivity)
Mortality Rate (- / + 10%)

(% change compared to base duc to sensitivity)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
9.02 15.13
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

10.50 7.83 17.85 12.95
16.40% -13.22% 17.97% -14.39%
7.79 10.52 12.90 17.88
-13.60% 16.63% -14.76% 18.15%
8.83 9.15 14.68 15.48
-2.13% 1.49% -2.98% 2.34%
9.01 9.03 15.12 15.14
-0.09% 0.10% -0.09% 0.08%

Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be cortelated.

There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior period.

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of reporting petiod is 14-20 years.




A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Within the next 12 months [next annual reporting year] 0.07 0.20
Between 2 and 5 years 1.26 1.90
Between 5 and 10 years 4.35 5.06
Beyond 10 years 29.75 4415
Total expected payments 35.43 51.31
Note 15 : Other liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
i Current Non-Cutrent Current Non-Current

Subsidy(Refer Note 15.1) 2,012.82 2,012.82
LIER for SWM land leases 298.64 298.64
Statutory dues payable 124.26 132.99

Total 124.26 2,311.46 132.99 2,311.46

Note 15.1: Government grants are related to setup of Collection, Transportation and Processing of Municipal and Solid waste at various locations in India. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these grants. ‘The group did not benefit directly from any other forms of government assistance.

Note 16: Current borrowings

Carried at amortised cost

Unsecured borrowings (Refer Note 16.1)
I'rom related party
lI‘rom others

Note 16.1: The unsecured borrowing from other is repayable on demand and having an interest rate of 10.75% - 24.00 % per annum.

Note 17 : Trade payables

l'otal outstanding ducs of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 17.1)
l'otal outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Note 17.1 Disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
502.30 446.78
1.20
502.30 447.98
As at As at
Mazrch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
0.68 1.44
1,565.04 1,454.20
1,565.72 1,455.64

The micro and small enterprises have been identified by the Company from the available information. According to such identification, the disclosures in

respect to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMIED) Act, 2006 1s as follows:

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006 the principal amount
and the interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any supplicr as at the end of cach accounting
- principal amount

- interest amount

The amount of intetest paid by the buyer in terms of scction 16, of the Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to
the supplicr beyond the appointed day during cach accounting year.

The amount of interest duc and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

The amount of intetrest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting year; and
‘The amount of further intetest remaining duc and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purposc of disallowance as a deductible expenditurc under section 23 of the Micro Small and

All the trade payables arc short term. The catrying value of trade payables are considered to be
the reasonable approximation of fair value

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

0.68

1.44



A27. WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Ageing of trade payables at March 31, 2023

Outstanding for following periods fromdue date of payment

e Unbilled Les‘s,et::n 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME 0.32 0.35 0.67
Others 225.09 66.03 43.52 104.23 1,126.18 1.565.05
Disputed dues — MSMIE
Disputed dues - Others .
Total 225.09 66.03 43.84 104.58 1,126.18 1,565.72
Agcing of trade payahles at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for following perinds frmmdue date of payment
L Unbilled Lesi::?n 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME 0.38 1.06 1.44
Others 188.89 193.82 0.35 1.071.36 1,454.42
Disputed dues — MSMIE
Disputed dues - Others : - . =
Total 189.27 194.89 0.35 - 1,071.36 1,455.87
As at As at
Note 18 : Other financial liabilities March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Interest accrued 145.74 185.12
Payable against property, plant and equipment - 3541
Payable to related parties 1,028.10 955.08
Payable to others 9.35 9.88
Book overdrafts 0.06 5.06
Total 1,183.25 B 1,190.55 -




A27 WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
, {(Unless*vtherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 12 : Equity share capital

Number of shares Amount
(i) Authorised share capital
Equity shares of INR 10 cach 50,000 5.00
0.001% Non participative cumulative redcemable preference shares of Rs 10 each 2,09,50,000 2,095.00
2,10,00,000 2,100.00
Number of shares Amount
(ii) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity Shares of INR 10 each
Balance as at April 1, 2022 50,000 5.00
Issue of equity share capital
Balance as at March 31, 2023 50,000 5.00
(iii) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:-
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Balance as at the beginning of the year 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00
Add: Shares issued during the year
Balance as at the end of the year 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00

(iv) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each sharcholder is cligible for onc vote per share held. The Company declares and pays
dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the board of dircctors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general mecting. In the event of
liquidation, the equity sharcholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharcholding.

(v) No shares have been allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash or as bonus shares for the period of 5 years immediately preceding

March 31, 2019.

(vi) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares of the Company:

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Number of shares Holding Number of shares Holding
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up
Greeneffect Waste Management Limited 15,000 30.00% 15,000 30.00%
A2Z Infraservices Limited 35,000 70.00% 35,000 70.00%
50,000 100.00% 50,000 100.00%
(vii) Details of shareholding held by promoters:
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Number of shares Holding Number of shares Holding
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up
A2Z Infraservices Limited 35,000 70.00% 35,000 70.00%
35,000 100.00% 35,000 100.00%
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A27 WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 19 : Revenue from operations For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sale/rendering of services
Revenue from collection and transportation of municipal solid waste 549.96 491.32
Revenue - User charge collection
Revenue - -RDF Briquette
Total 549.96 491.32
Note 20 : Other income For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest income:
on fixed deposits 2.07 0.98
- on income tax refund 0.10 1.20
on group company loans 2.51
Sundry Balance written back 042
Miscellaneous income
Total 2.17 5.11
Note 21: Cost of materials consumed For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Material consumed 179.99 120.69
Other direct cost 3.01 6.44
Total 183.00 127.13
Note 22 : Employee benefits expense For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries and bonus including directors' remuneration 235.74 244.72
Contribution to provident and other funds 23.70 24.74
Gratvity (Refer Note 14 i) 5.28 6.51
Compensated absences benefits (2.31) 0.69
Share-based payments (2.48) 0.30
Staff welfare expenses 4.7 5.24
Total 264.64 282.20
Note 23 : Finance costs For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest expense [23.1] 111.70 153.02
Bank commission & charges 0.59 0.46
Total 112.29 153.48
[23.1] The break up of interest expense into major heads is given below:
On term loans
On group companies 86.47 134.18
On others 25.23 18.84
Total 111.70 153.02

"
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A27 WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 24 : Depreciation and amortisation expenses

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3) 45.48 48.70
Total 45.48 48.70
Note 25 : Other expenses For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Electricity 0.06 0.10
Rent (Refer Note 25.1) 1.95 32.80
Freight Outward
Insurance 0.37 2.05
Repair and maintenance
- Plant and Machinery 27.13 17.69
- Vehicle 7.08 10.38
- Others 0.10
Traveling expenses 5.85 244
Communication expenses 0.07
Printing and stationery 0.15 0.11
Legal and Professional 49.75 12.79
Payments to auditors (Refer Note 25.2) 0.54 0.70
Hiring charges 58.50 64.80
Business promotion expenses 0.35
Fees and subscription / inspection charges 0.08
Miscellaneous expenses 0.02 2.7
Total 151.93 146.64
Note 25.1 The Group has entered into vatious short-term cancellable lease agreements at a notice period up to three months for leased premises and
equipment. Gross rental expenses aggregate to INR 1.95 (Previour year INR 32.80 Lacs).
For the year ended For the year ended
Note 25.2 Details of payments to auditors March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
As auditor
Statutory audit fee 0.54 0.70
Tax audit fee
Total 0.54 0.70

For the year ended

For the year ended




A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless ,*herwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 26 : Tax expense

Cutrent tax expense
Deferred tax charge
Tax expense

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Loss before tax (205.21) (261.72)
Corporate tax rate as per income tax act, 1961 26.00% 26.00%
Tax on accounting profit (53.35) (68.05)

i) ‘l'ax cffect on non deductible expenses/ non-taxable income 28.37 1.09

if) T'ax cffect on temporary timing differences on which deferred tax not created 4.28 379

iii) T'ax effect on losses of current year on which no deferred tax is created 22.77 63.17
Tax expense Lk -
Note 26.1:  a) Detail of unused tax losses for which no deferred tax is recognised in balance sheet:

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Base amount Deferred tax Base amount Deferred tax Expiry date
(Assessment year)

Tax losses
Asscssment Year 2017-18 006 0.02 0.06 0.02 March 31, 2026
Assessment Year 2018-19 54.52 1418 54,52 14.18 March 31, 2027
Assessment Year 2019-20 38.27 9.95 38.27 9.95 March 31, 2028
Assessment Year 2020-21 279.00 72.54 279.00 72.54 March 31, 2029
Assessment Year 2021-22 19.21 4.98 19.21 4.98 March 31, 2030
Asscssment Year 2022-23 85.08 2212 85.08 22,12 March 31, 2031
Asscssment Year 2023-24 55.68 14.44 March 31, 2032
Total 531.81 138.22 476.14 123.78

b) Detail of unrecognised deductible temporary differences and unabsorbed for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in balance sheet:
As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2023

Base amount Deferred tax Base amount Deferred tax LTIy
(Assessment year)
Unabsorbed depreciation 444 09 115.39 412.20 107.11 Not applicable
Provision for doubtful debts . Not applicable
Provision for gratuity 7.65 1.99 Not applicable
Impaicment loss 0.33 008 Not applicablc
Temporary difference on depreciation 0.27) 0.07) (0.37) (0.09) Not applicable
444.14 115.41 419.47 109.00

Note 27 : Earnings per share (EPS)

Both the basic and diluted earnings per share have been calculated using the foss attributable to cquity holders of the parent as the numerator, i.e. no adjustments to loss were necessary in year

ended March 31, 2023,

“The reconciliation of the weighted average number of shares for the purposes of diluted carnings per share to the weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic

carnings per share is as follows:

Weighted average number of shares used in basic and diluted carnings per share
Shares deemed to be issued for no consideration in respect of share-based payments
Weighted average number of shares used in diluted earnings per share

‘The numerators and denominators used to calculate the basic and diluted 13PS are as follows:
Loss attributable to equity holders of the parent
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the ycar
Nominal value of equity share
Basic IiPS
Diluted 1iPS

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

50,000 50000

50,000 50,000
INR in lacs (188.73) 33.61
Numbers 50,000 50000
INR 10.00 10.00
INR (377.46) 6722
INR (377.46) 67.22



A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

28 Related party disclosures
28.1 Names of related parties

(I) Ultimate Holding company
A27Z Infra Engineering Limited

(II) Holding company
A2Z Infraservices Limited

(III) Subsidiaries of A2Z Infra Engineering Limited
1 A27Z Infraservices Limited
A2Z Powercom Limited
Mansi Bijlee & Rice Mills Limited
Chavan Rishi International Limited (till 08.02.2022)
Magic Genie Services Limited
A2Z Maintenance & Engineering Services Limited and Satya Builders (Assoc1at10n of person)
Blackrock Waste Processing Private Limited

~N NN

Subsidiaries of A2Z Infraservices Limited

Ecogreen Envirotech Solutions Limited (49% along with management control)
A2Z Infraservices Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd.(till 26.04.2022)

A2Z Waste Management (Aligarh) Limited

Vswach Environment (Aligarh) Private Limited (wef 09.12.2022)

Vsapients Techno Services Private Limited (wef 21.02.2023)

K)'I-PWNHg

Associate enterprises of A2Z Infra Engineering Limited

Greeneffect Waste Management Limited
A27 Waste Management (Nainital) Private Limited
A27 Waste Management (Jaipur) Ltd.

on 3

~

Subsidiaries of Greeneffect Waste Management Limited
A27Z Waste Management (Merrut) Limited

A27 Waste Management (Moradabad) Limited

A2Z Waste Management (Varanasi) Limited

A27 Waste Management (Balia) Limited

A27 Waste Management (Jaunpur) Limited

A27 Waste Management (Fatehpur) Limited

A27Z Waste Management (Ahmedabad) Limited

A27 Waste Management (Mirzapur) Limited

A27Z Waste Management (Ranchi) Limited

10 A2Z Waste Management (Sambhal) Limited

11 A27Z Waste Management (Badaun) Limited

12 A2Z Waste Management (Dhanbad) Private Limited

13 A27 Waste Management (Jaipur) Limited

14  Shree Balaji Pottery Private Limited

15  Shree Hari Om Utensils Private Limited

16  Earth Environment Management Services Private Limited

\ooo\nom.pmm..-a

I) Director and KMP of the Company
Mr. Dilbag, Director
Mr. Shankar Paul - Director
Mr. Surender Singh - Director
Ms. Atima Khanna - Director (appointed w.e.f. 11.05.2022)
Ms. Chaitali Sharma - Director (appointed w.e.f. 11.05.2022)
Mr. Hlamant Kumar - Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Bhaggya Makkar - Company Secretary
Mr. Anand Mishra - Chief Executive Officer

m\lomﬁul\)"a




A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(VIII) Private Companies in which a Director or Manager or his Relative is a Member or Director

Mr. Dilbag or his relatives
| Pragati Das Mining India Private Limited

Mr. Surender Singh or his relatives

1 Pragati Fluids Corporation Private Limited

2 Planet Fluids Private Limited

3 Tanya Infra Enterprises Private Limited

4 Pioneer Pragati Petro Projects Private Limited
(IX) Directors and KMP of Holding Company

1 Mr. Amit Mittal ( Director)

2 Mrs. Dipali Mittal (Whole Time Director)

3 Mrs. Atima Khanna (Director)

4 Mr. Vikas Agarwal (Director)

5  Ms. Chaitali Sharma (Director)

6 Ms. Priya Goel (Director)




A27Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Mipie 20.2; Related Party Transactions

Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2023

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Ultimate
Holding
Company and
Holding
Company

Enterprise in
control of KMP
and relatives

Fellow
Subsidiary

KMP

Ultimate
Holding | Enterprise
Company | in control of

and KMP and
Holding relatives
Company

Fellow
Subsidiary

KMP

Transactions during the period

Short term loan Given

- Ecogreen Envirotech Solutions 1.imited
L —COR

3509

57.97

|Short term loan refunded

icogreen Lnvirotech Solutions 1imited

142 84

Short Term Loan & Advances Accepted

- A2Z Infra Engincering Limited

13055

23930

A27Z Waste Management (Aligarh) Limited

500

2690

- Ecogreen Envirotech Solution Limited

0 50

330.89

Short Term Loan & Advances Repaid

- A2Z Infra Engincering Limited

500

247.65 -

- Ecogreen Envirotech Solutions Limited

7073

27482

- A27Z. Waste Management (Aligarh) Limited

4 80

13.57

KMP Remuneration

Hemant kumar

517

517

Anand Mishra

792

285

Vishant Chaudhary

487

Bhagya Makkar

883

7.68

Interest expenses on loan taken

- Greeneffect Waste Management Limited

16.91

- A27Z Infra Engincering Limited

1028

- A2Z Infrascrvices Limited

12.90

1897

- Manst Bijlee and Rice Mills Limited

7356

65.46

- Beogreen Envirotech Solutions Limited

19 91

- A2Z Waste Management (Aligach) 1imited

267

Interest expenses on loan taken Paid

- A27Z Infra Engincering Limited

1268

- Ecogreen Envirotech Solutions 1Limited

1792

Interest income on loan given

- Shree Flari Om Utensils Private Limited

002

- Shree Balaji Pottery Private Limited

0.02

- Ecogreen linvirotech Solutions Limited

2.48

Expenses incurred (Fund Received) on behalf of Company

- A2Z Infra Bngneering Limited

-l:cogreen Envirotech Solutions Limited

-Greeneffect Waste Management Limited

73,02

Balance outstanding as at the end of the period

Investment in equity share capital

- Icoercen linvirotech Solutions Limited

[
v
vl

Investment in preference shares/debentures (Debt Portion)

- 'Greenceffect Waste Management Limited (Formerly known as A27Z,
Green Waste Management Limited)

1059

- 1039 .

- A27, Infraservices Jamited

6l) 68

5023

- Mansi Bijlee and Rice Mills Limited

66777

594 20

- A27 Infraservices Limited (Purchased from A27 Green Waste
Management Limited

5645

5400

Investment in prefercnce shares/debentures (Equity Portion)

- Greeneffect Waste Management Limited

+465.55

465 55

- A27 Infrascervices Limited (Purchased from A27. Green Waste
Management Limited

7116

- Mansi Bijlee and Rice Mills Limited

1,487 74

148774

- A27, Infraservices Limited

125.77




A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unles s atherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Short term borrowings

Greencffect Waste Management Limited

11568

11568

- A2Z Infra Engineering Limited

319 26

193.70

A2Z Infrascrvsmes Lismitsd

53 dd

53 44

AL Waste Managgensini {Aligach) Limited

13.53

1333

- Ecogreen Envirotech Solution Limited

0.38

70.61

Short term loan given

- Shree Balaji Pottery Private Limited

0.13

0.13

- Shree Hari Om Utensils Private Limited

013

013

3509

- Ecogreen Envirotech Solutions Limited

Other financial liability (interest accrued)

-Greencffect Waste Management Limited

11493

11250

- A27 Infra Enginecrine Limited

6.51

- A2Z Infraservices | immibil

185

- Bcogreen Envirotech Solutions Limited

1792

A27 Waste Management (Aligach) Limited

240

Other financial liability

-Greeneffect Waste Management Limited
ELLIT

686 37

613 34

A2Z Infra Engineering Limited

34173

341.73

Other financal assets (Interest accrued)

Shree Hari Om Utensils Private Limited

0.13

0.13

Shree Balaji Pottery Private Limited

013

013

Other financial assets (advance recoverable in cash)

Ecogreen Envirotech Solutions Limited

039

Trade receivable

A27 Waste Management {Aligarh) Limited

1523

A27 Waste Management (Jaunpur) Limited

372

372

-Greeneffect Waste Management Limited

018

018

Ecogreen Envirotech Solution Limited

{152

‘Trade pavable

Zcogreen Envirotech Solutions Limited

22.32

A2Z Infra Engineering Limited

2596

KMP Remuneration

[Hamant kumar

258

258

Bhagpya Makkar

294

192

Anand Mishm

300

1a71

Vishant choudhary

244




A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless viterwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 29: Financial risk management

(i) Financial instruments by category

For amortised cost instrumnents, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value.

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost
Financial assets
Trade receivables 974.66 931.18
Loans 41.23 6.24
Cash and cash cquivalents 7.85 74.83
Investments 850.83 834.35
Other financial asscts 229.32 - - 201.69
Total - = I, 3. B4 = = LIHE.29
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 1,297 79 1,157.00
Trade payables 1,565.72 1,455.64
Other financial liabilitics 1.183.25 I.l‘)().i
Total - . 4,046,76 = - 3,803.19

(ii) Risk management

"The Group’s activitics cxposc it to market sk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related

impact in the financial statements

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit ask Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, Aging analysis Bank deposits, diversification of asset base,
financial assets measured at amortised cost credit limits and collateral.

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow Analysis of committed credit lines and

forecasts

borrowing facilites

Market risk - foreign exchange Recognised financial assets and liabilitics not Cash flow forecasting Risk limits
denominated in Indian Rupee (INR)

Market risk - intcrest rate Long-term borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis Risk limits

Market risk - sccunity price Investments in equity securitics Scasitivity analysis Risk limits

"The Group’s dsk management is carried out by a central treasury department (of the Group) under policies approved by the board of directors. The board of directors provides written principles
for overall risk management, as well as policics covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

A. Credit risk
Credit sk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Group. The Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, investments carried at amortised
cost and deposits with banks and financial institutions, The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the reporting date.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified cither individually or by the Group, and incorporates this information into its credit dsk controls
Where available at teasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on customers and other counterparties are obtained and used. The Group’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy
counterparties

The Group’s receivables comprises of trade receivables. During the periods presented, the group made no write-offs of trade receivables and it does not expect to reccive future cash flows or
recoveries from collection of cash flows previously written off. The Group has certain trade receivables that have not been settled by the contractual due date but are not considered to be
impaired, as given below:

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Not more than 30 days
More than 30 days but not more than 60 days
More than 60 days but not more than 90 days 104.37 61.31
More than 90 days 870.28 870.06
Total 974.66 931.37
Less: Allowances for doubtful debes : (0.19)
974.66 931.18

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics.
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in various industries and geographical arcas Bascd on historical information about customer default rates management consider the credit
quality of trade receivables that are not past due or impaired to be good. The Group recognizes lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivables using a simplified approach and uscs historical
information to arrive at loss percentage relevant to cach category of trade receivables. "The Group follows a single loss rate approach and estimates expected credit loss on trade receivables to be
3%, urther, specific provision is made for any individual debtors which arc considered to be doubtful and non-recoverable in part or in full. The reconciliation of expected credit losscs on trade
receivables is given below.




A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
J{Unless serwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)
As at As at
- March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance as at the beginning of the year . ;

Additional provision
Reversal of provision

Balance as at the end of the year

The credit risk for other financial assets is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable organisations with high quality external credit ratings. However, specific provision is madc in

case a particular receivable is considered to be non-recoverable.

B. Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity rsk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet
obligations when due. Due to the nature of the business, the Group maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed facilities.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group takes into account the liquidity of the
market in which the entity operates. In addition, the Group’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessagy to
meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

As at March 31, 2023 Less than 1year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 502.30 2,517.17 3,019.47
Trade payables 1,565.72 - 1,565.72
Other financial liabilities 1,183.25 - 1,183.25
Total 3.251.27 51717 5 TGEAH
As at March 31, 2022
Non-derivatives Less than 1year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Borrowings 447.98 ECTEAT] 2965.15
Trade payables 1,455.64 1,455.64
Other financial liabilities 1.190.55 1190.55
3094.17 2.517.17 5,611.34
Total

C. Market risk
(a) Interest rate risk

(i) Liabilities
The Group’s policy is to minimisc interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. At March 31, 2021, the Group is exposed to changes in market interest rates through bank
borrowings at variable interest rates. The Group’s investments in fixed deposits all pay fixed interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Group to interest rate rsk:

As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Fixed rate borrowing 1,297.79 1,157.00

Variable rate borrowing

Total 1,297.79 1157




A27Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 30 : Capital management policies and procedures
For the purposce of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issuced cquity capital, convertible preference shares, share premium and all other
equity rescrves attributable to the equity holders of the Group.

The Group’ s capital management objectives are:

* to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

* to provide an adequate return to shareholders
by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in cconomic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders or issue
new shares. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is nct debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes within net debt,
interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

As at As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Borrowings 1,297.79 1,157.00
T'rade payables 1,565.72 1,455.64
Iess: Cash and cash equivalents (7.85) (74.83)
Net debt 2,855.66 2,537.81
Iiquity 472.35 652.17
Capital and net debt 3,328.01 3,189.98
Gearing ratio 85.81% 79.56%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached
to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policics or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2022.

SI. No. Ratio At Matrch 31, 2022 | At March 31, Variance Reason for variance
2021
1 Current ratio 0.43 0.44 -0.01 No major variance
1 Debt-equity ratio 2.75 1.77 0.55 NA
i Debt service coverage ratio NA NA NA NA
v Return on equity ratio -0.34 0.05 -7.32 Duc to higher profit in current year
v Inventory turnover ratio NA NA NA NA
vi I'rade receivables turnover ratio NA NA NA NA
Vit Trade payables turnover ratio NA NA NA NA
viit Net capital turnover ratio -0.14 -014 0.06 NA
1x Nect profit ratio -0.34 0.07 -6.02 Due to higher profit in current year
X Return on capital employed -0.20 -0.17 0.19 NA
X1 Return on investment NA NA NA NA

Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows:-

SL No Ratios Formulae
1 Current ratio Current assets +~ Current liabilitics
il Debt-cquity ratio T'otal debt + Sharcholder's equity
i Debt service coverage ratio Farnings available for debt service* + Debt Service**
v Return on cquity ratio (Nct profit after tax - Preference Dividend (if any)) + Average sharcholder's
v Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold or sales + Average Inventory
Vi ‘T'rade recctvables turnover ratio Nect Credit Sales + Average accounts reccivables
vil I'rade payables turnover ratio Net credit purchases + Average trade payables
Vit Net capital turnover ratio Net Sales +~ Working capital
1x Net profit ratio Net profit after tax + Revenue from operations
X Return on capital employed Liarnings before interest and Taxes +~ Capital employed****
X1 Return on investment (Current value of investment - Cost of investment) + Cost of investment
* Iiarning for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes*¥** + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation

#k  Dcbt service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments
dkk  “Net Profit after tax” means reported amount of “Profit / (loss) for the period” and it does not jeluls

#kkk  Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability h‘;'? r_‘B__’

</
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A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
No1¢% forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
+(Unilss otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

"Note 31: Group information:

Consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2023 comprisc the financial statements of A2Z Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries,

which arc as under:

Principal e hyto Status of Financial Statements | Proportion of equity Interest
§. No. pels activities NIC Code incorporation at ol
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Indian and Foreign subsidiaries:
1 Waste
Magic Genic Smflrtcch Solutions | management 81100 India Audited 100.00%
Limited processing
facility
2 Rishikesh Waste Management Waste
Limited (IFormerly Known as A2Z management 81100 India Audited 100.00%
Powertech Limited) processing

Note 32: Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the general instructions for preparation of consolidated financial statements to division IT of Schedule 11T to the
Companies Act, 2013:

Net Assets i.e. total assets minus total

Share in profit /(loss)

Share in total

liabilities comprehensive income
Particular pr— o o5
$ 700 o q 00
% of C lidated
Consolidated net Amount s 2€q Amount Consolidated Amount
profit /(loss) .
assets profit /(loss)
Parent:
1 A27, Waste Management (1.udhiana) Limited -57.20% (270.21) 97127  (183.27) 97.12% (183.15)
Subsidiaries:
1 Magic Genic Smartech Solutions Limited -8.87% (41.89) 5™y (11.03) 5.84% (0.49)
2 Rishikesh Waste Management Limited -42.45% (200.53) Ay (10.90) 5.78% (10.17)
Total non-cntrolling interest in all subsidiaries 0.00% . 0.00% - 0.00%
Total eliminations/ consolidation adjustments 208.52% 985.01 -8.74% 16.49 -8.74% 16.49
Total 1.00 472.38 1.00 (188.72) 1.00 (177.32)

Note 33 : Post-reporting date events
No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the reporting date March 31, 2023 and the date of authorisation 18th May, 2023

Note 34 : Authorisation of financial statements

"T'he consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (including comparatives) were approved by the board of directors on 18th May, 2023.
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